
                                                                                                       Approved 2/28/2011                      
Village of La Grange Park 

Engineering & Capital Projects Committee Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2011 

 
A meeting of the La Grange Park Engineering & Capital Projects Committee was scheduled to 
be held at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, January 13, 2011 at the Village Hall in La Grange Park. 
 
Chairman Seeder called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. He asked Village Clerk Brunette to call 
the roll.   
 
Members in attendance were: 
                                                         Committee Members: Trustee Seeder 
 Trustee Topps 
 Trustee Kozica 
                                                              

Others Present:        
                                                      Interim Village Manager: Julia Cedillo 
                                             Village Public Works Director: Julius Hansen 
       Village Police Chief: Daniel McCollum 
                                     Village Director of Building & Fire: Dean Maggos 
            Village Engineer: Paul Flood 
                                                       Public Works Employee: Rick Radde 
                                          Hancock Engineering Employee: Mark Lucas 
                                                 
  
Clerk Brunette informed Chairman Seeder a quorum was present.  Chairman Seeder began the 
meeting by talking about his ideas for how the discussion of the items on the Agenda would be 
meeting handled.  He then introduced Village Engineer Paul Flood to giver his thoughts on what 
could be done about flooding in the Village of La Grange Park.   
 
Engineer Flood talked about some of the results that were detailed in the report the Village Board 
members received from Hancock Engineering regarding Village of La Grange Park flooding 
problems.  During his comments, Village Public Works Director Hansen also made comments.  
He talked about the pro-active measures the Village Public Works Department takes to keep the 
Village’s sewer system working the best it can.   
 
During the comments by Engineer Flood and Director Hansen, Engineer Flood introduced Mark 
Lucas, PE from Hancock Engineering.  Engineer Flood said Mr. Lucas was at the meeting at his 
request.  He said Mr. Lucas is the chief hydrogenous engineer for Hancock Engineering. Then 
Mr. Lucas added some additional comments about the La Grange Park situation. 
 
Mr. Lucas said he js a resident of the Village of Brookfield and is also the Village Engineer for 
Brookfield.  He was asked if Brookfield has to endure similar problems to the ones suffered by 
the Village of La Grange Park.  Mr. Lucas said Brookfield has many of the exact same problems 
and he told the Committee members about the steps Brookfield takes to try and address flooding 
in that Village.   
 
All three gentlemen explained how La Grange Park’s gravity sewer system works and about the 
size of the pipes and lift stations present in the La Grange Park sewer system.  Engineer Flood 
said that some flood prevention methods detailed in the Hancock Report could be combined with 



                     
others in the report.  He talked about the new ideas in the Hancock report.  He said one of them 
was a flooding solution that would cost over $44,000,000 and another would cost about 
$23,000,000.  He said portions of those “big solutions” ideas could be used. Then there were a 
number of other far less expensive methods that were discussed.  He said the $44,000,000 plan 
would be the “Cadillac” and it would address all of La Grange Park’s flooding matters.  He said 
the $23,000,000 plan would cut back on the amount of improvement but it would address most 
of La Grange Park flooding problems. 
 
He then went on to talk about smaller steps that could be taken to prevent flooding in La Grange 
Park.  He talked about adding vortex drain valves to La Grange Park sewers at certain 
intersections that would help to store water on Village streets, rather than in Village basements.  
He talked about retention ponds and about underground storage chambers.   
 
Committee Chairman Seeder asked Interim Village Manager Cedillo whether special service 
districts could be eligible for bond issues to help pay for flood relief in particular areas of the 
Village.  Interim Manager Cedillo said she would check and find out.   
 
Engineer Flood, Director Hansen and Engineer Lucas talked about other plans that were included 
in the Hancock report.  They talked about hooking up to the Deep Tunnel.  They said it would be 
a relatively expensive plan because the hook-up would have to go over to the Village of La 
Grange to a drop shaft for the Deep Tunnel over near Gordon Park in La Grange.  Engineer 
Flood said the hard part of that plan was the fact the piping that would have to be used would 
have to be bore through solid rock in order to get to the drop shaft with the proper angle of 
decent in order for the gravity system to work and get the water into the drop shaft.   
 
They talked about retention ponds.  Engineer Flood said the first retention pond idea was one 
where the Village would build a large retention pond to store a great deal of water.  But he said 
the dilemma there, as discussed previously, was that a number of properties would have to be 
condemned in order to have a pond big enough to store sufficient water.  Engineers Flood and 
Lucas told the Committee that it would be possible to build a number of much smaller retention 
ponds, but there would be problems with doing that because those smaller ponds could not 
necessarily store a sufficient amount of water to make a tremendous difference though, it could 
be a very promising proposition. 
 
They then spent more time talking about underground retention.  It was decided that there are a 
number of places in La Grange Park that are possibly on public lands, though not necessarily 
Village land, where underground retention chambers could be built.  They also talked about 
placing one underneath the new parking lot that was scheduled to be built on Beach south of 31st 
Street.   
 
Chairman Seeder asked the Committee members if they felt any of the Hancock plans could just 
be eliminated right from the start. All of the members said the $44,000,000 and the $23,000,000 
projects should be taken off the table.   
 
Chairman Seeder then moved on to non-engineering responses to flooding.  He asked Police 
Chief McCollum and Fire Chief Maggos and Director Hansen to talk about some of the other 
things that could be done that would not involve large engineering construction projects.  All 
three gentlemen talked about methods to divert traffic from flooded areas and methods to prevent 
“tourist” traffic.  Chief Maggos and Director Hansen talked about their opinion and about 
emergency calls that could be made to help prevent flooding.  Chief Maggos talked about 



                     
developing a potential “Emergency Incident Plan” and about other public education programs 
that might be planned for flood prevention.   
 
There was no further discussion at this evening’s meeting.  Chairman Seeder said the next 
meeting of the Committee would be scheduled for February 10, 2011. There was a motion by 
Committee member Kozica to adjourn the meeting. Committee member Topps seconded the 
motion.  The motion to adjourn passed unanimously on a voice vote.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      W. Kerry Brunette 
      Village Clerk 
 


	Village of La Grange Park
	Engineering & Capital Projects Committee Meeting Minutes


